UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA ORLANDO DIVISION

HILLARY FENNER, INDIVIDUALLY AND ON BEHALF OF ALL OTHERS SIMILARLY SITUATED,

Plaintiffs,

CASE NO.: CLASS ACTION JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

VS.

ROSEWOOD COLONY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., CLAYTON & MCCULLOH, P.A.,

Defendants.

VERIFIED COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES PURSUANT TO THE FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT, 15 U.S.C. § 1692, ET SEO., AND THE FLORIDA CONSUMER COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT, FLA. STAT. § 559.72, ET SEO.,

Plaintiff, HILLARY FENNER ("Plaintiff"), files suit against Defendants, ROSEWOOD COLONY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., ("ROSEWOOD") and CLAYTON & MCCULLOH, PA ("CM LAW", together as "Defendants"), and as grounds therefore states:

INTRODUCTION

- 1. Count I and III, respectively, are based on Plaintiff's claims under the Florida Consumer Collections Practices Act, Fla. Stat. § 559.55, et seq., ("FCCPA").
- 2. Count II is based on Plaintiff's claims under the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C § 1692, et seq. ("FDCPA").

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

- 3. This Court has federal question jurisdiction over the FDCPA cause of action because this cause of action arises out of a violation of federal law. 47 U.S.C. § 227(b); *Mims Arrow Fin Servs.*, *LLC*, 132 S. Ct. 740 (2012).
- 4. This court has jurisdiction over the FCCPA cause of action under its supplemental jurisdiction. 28 U.S.C. § 1367.
- 5. Venue is proper in the United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida because the events giving rise to Plaintiffs' causes of action originated and occurred

within the State of Florida and Defendants conduct business in the Orange County, FL. Moreover, the subject property is located in the Orange County, FL.

PARTIES

- 6. Plaintiff is a record owner of real property located in Hillsborough County, Florida.
- 7. Defendant, CM LAW, is a Florida for profit Corporation that, at all times material hereto, is registered with the Florida Division of Corporations to transact business in the state of Florida.
- 8. Defendant, CM LAW, is engaged in the business of collecting consumer debts, acting as attorneys for various condominium associations and homeowner's associations, from consumers in the state of Florida and in Orange County, Florida.
- Defendant, ROSEWOOD, is a Florida not-for-profit corporation that, at all times
 material hereto, is registered with the Florida Division of Corporations to transact business in the
 state of Florida.
- 10. Defendant, ROSEWOOD, is engaged in the business of collecting consumer debts, from consumers in the state of Florida and in Orange County, Florida.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

- 11. At all times relevant, Defendants, ROSEWOOD and CM LAW conducted business in the State of Florida within this judicial district.
- 12. Defendant ROSEWOOD engages in debt collection, as defined by the FCCPA, in the State of Florida.
- 13. Defendant CM LAW engages in debt collection, as defined by the FDCPA and FCCPA, in the State of Florida.
- 14. At no time did Plaintiff enter into a business relationship with Defendant, ROSEWOOD.
- 15. At no time did Plaintiff enter into a business relationship with Defendant, ROSEWEOOD
- 16. Plaintiff allegedly, pursuant to communications received from Defendant, ROSWEOOD, owes a consumer debt as that term is defined by both the FDCPA and FCCPA.
- 17. Plaintiff is a consumer as that term is defined by both the FDCPA and the FCCPA.

- 18. Defendant, ROSEWOOD, is a debt collector as that term is defined by the FCCPA.
- 19. Defendant, CM LAW, is a debt collector as that term is defined by both the FDCPA and the FCCPA.
- 20. Within the last year, Defendant, ROSEWOOD, attempted to collect consumer debts from Plaintiff.
- 21. Within the last year, Defendant, CM LAW, attempted to collect consumer debts from Plaintiff.
- 22. Defendant, ROSEWOOD, regularly collects, or attempts to collect, debts owed or due or asserted to be owed or due another.
- 23. Defendant, CM LAW, regularly collects, or attempts to collect, debts owed or due or asserted to be owed or due another.
- 24. During the course of its attempts to collect debts owed, either directly or through an agent, or due or asserted to be owed or due another, Defendant, ROSEWOOD, acting through its agents, sent Plaintiff bills, statements, or other correspondence, via the mail or electronic mail, and initiates contact with alleged debtors via various means of telecommunication, such as by telephone and facsimile.
- 25. During the course of its attempts to collect debts owed, either directly or through an agent, or due or asserted to be owed or due another, Defendant, CM LAW, sent Plaintiff bills, statements, or other correspondence, via the mail or electronic mail, and initiates contact with alleged debtors via various means of telecommunication, such as by telephone and facsimile.
- 26. Defendant, ROSEWOOD, acted through its agents, employees, officers, members, directors, heirs, successors, assigns, principals, trustees, sureties, subrogees, representatives, and insurers.
- 27. Defendant, CM LAW, acted through its agents, employees, officers, members, directors, heirs, successors, assigns, principals, trustees, sureties, subrogees, representatives, and insurers.
- 28. Plaintiff's alleged debts to all Defendants arise from transactions for personal, family, and household purposes as Plaintiff purchased this property to initially serve as his homestead, owner-occupied, residence. Said debt, namely association dues, arose from that purchase.

- 29. Specifically, Plaintiff purchased property on or about November 11, 2004.
- 30. Said property was subject to Defendant, ROSEWOOD's, Declaration, Bylaws, and other governing documents, recorded in OR Book 3108, page(s) 1645 1699 of the Public Records of Orange County; however, this association was terminated via written notice of termination recorded in OR Book 3173, page 490 in the public records of Orange County.
- 31. Said declaration was replaced with the Declaration of Restrictions and Affirmative Covenants for Rosewood Colony (also ROSEWOOD) recorded in OR Book 3180, Page 2572.
- 32. Said documents allow for the collection of assessments with the property and these assessments represent a consumer debt that is incurred for family, household, or personal reasons.
- 33. Said assessments represent a way for the Association to pay its common expenses.
 - 34. Regardless of how property is titled each unit owner is liable for this debt.
 - 35. These assessments are to be due monthly on the first of each month.
 - 36. If an payment is late by 30 days, it shall bear interest at a rate of 10%.
- 37. This declaration is clear, that enforcement of that declaration shall be by action against any person either to restrain violation or to recover damages. See ¶ 13.
- 38. At some point, Defendant, ROSEWOOD, by and through CM LAW, sought to collect allegedly unpaid assessments from Plaintiff.
- 39. Defendant, CM LAW, for and on behalf of Defendant, ROSEWOOD, purports to have made initial contact with the Plaintiff, through a David E. Borack, on or about April 27, 2017.
- 40. In that initial communication, CM LAW sent a written communication identifying unpaid assessments dating back to April 2012, interest, accumulating at 18%, since April 2012, Attorney's Fees of \$400.00, and indicated a total amount due of \$11,640.41.
- 41. This letter indicated that if the full amount is not paid within 45 days from the date of receipt of that letter, that a lien would be filed against the property. ROSEWOOD, by and through CM LAW, then indicated that if the entire balance could not be paid in a lump sum, then the Association may consider payment terms.

- 42. This letter then gave a NOTICE REGARDING THE FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT, indicating that CM Law would assume the debt was valid if nothing was received in 30 days after the receipt of the letter disputing the debt.
- 43. CM Law then states that the "law does not require me (the debt collector) to wait until the end of the **forty-five day period** referenced on this page before proceeding to collect this debt. If, however, you request proof of the debt or the name and address of the original creditor within the **forty-five day period** which beings with your receipt of this letter, the law requires me to suspend my efforts (through litigation or otherwise) to collect the debt until I mail the requested information to you."
- 44. At no point in this initial correspondence was the Plaintiff advised that a portion of this debt was from a period of time outside of the statute of limitations. At no point in this correspondence was the Plaintiff told that the payment of all or any of the amount could toll the statute of limitations. This initial correspondence also did not contain the 'mini-miranda' as required by 15 USCA § 1692(e)(11).
- 45. Defendants' next communication came on August 25, 2017. This was again sent by ROSEWOOD, through CM LAW.
- 46. This letter indicated that a "Claim of Lien" had been sent for filing against [Plaintiff's] property because monthly assessments had not been paid.
- 47. This letter indicated that the Association "intends to foreclose the lien and collect the unpaid amount within 30 days of this letter being provided to [Plaintiff]."
- 48. CM LAW then asserted that assessments were due from April 2012 through August of 2017. That Interest, at 18%, arose for those dates. That now \$800 dollars in attorney's fees had accrued. Said letter now contained the 'mini-miranda' as required by 15 USCA § 1692(e)(11).
- 49. Defendant, ROSEWOOD, through its claim of lien, dated on August 14, 2017, recorded on August 24, 2017, signed by its alleged agent INGRID BERIO, attempts to collect assessments that remain unpaid from April of 2012 to at least July of 2017, which were due on the first of each month. Moreover, this claim of lien differed from other correspondence by requesting assessments in the amount of \$8,352, interest again at the 18%. Additionally, the claim of lien requested costs and attorney's fees that have come due and may have come due in the future. Claim of Lien Attached hereto as Exhibit A.

- 50. Defendant, ROSEWOOD, by and through CM LAW, filed a suit in Orange County Court, Case No.: 17-CC-13405, seeking to foreclose its claim of lien and for a money judgment based on defaults from April 2012 to the date of filing the lawsuit.
- 51. Defendant, ROSEWOOD, by and through CM LAW, also requested admissions contemporaneously with the filing of the complaint.
- 52. Based on these communications, Plaintiff has suffered actual damages as a result of Defendants actions by virtue of having to pay the costs associated with the defense of the state court litigation and to retain counsel therein.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS
(AS TO ONLY CLAYTON & MCCULLOH, P.A.)

- 53. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 52 of this Complaint as though fully set forth herein.
- 54. Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of herself and on behalf of all others similarly situated ("the Class"). Plaintiff, and those individuals who would comprise the anticipated class, can satisfy the pre-requisites of Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a-b).
- 55. Plaintiff represents, and is a member of a Class, consisting of all persons within the state of Florida who, within one year prior to the filing of this Complaint, have been contacted in writing by Defendant, CM LAW, seeking to collect debts that were time barred by the applicable statute of limitations and said correspondence received no notice that said debts were uncollectable by legal action.
- 56. Plaintiff represents, and is a member of a Class, consisting of all persons within the state of Florida who, within one year prior to the filing of this Complaint, have been contacted in writing by Defendant, CM LAW, seeking to collect debts that imposed an interest fee that was not collectable under the documents governing CM LAW's clients.
- 57. Plaintiff represents, and is a member of a Class, consisting of all persons within the state of Florida who, within one year prior to the filing of this Complaint, have been contacted in writing by Defendant, CM LAW, seeking to collect debts that did not contain the "mini-miranda" as required under 15 USCA § 1692(e)(11).
- 58. Plaintiff represents, and is a member of a Class, consisting of all persons within the state of Florida who, within one year prior to the filing of this Complaint, have been contacted in writing by Defendant, CM LAW, seeking to collect debts that were time barred by

the statute of limitations and sought to induce consumers to enter into settlement agreements without warning the consumer that to do so could toll and revitalize time barred debts.

- 59. By virtue of this assertion, the possibility of inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual class members can occur. Specifically, based on the proper notices given to respective class members, and without the acknowledgment that the debts are not collectable by legal action or the disclosure that a payment of sums requested could toll a statute of limitations, class members could potentially end up paying, or being found liable, for debts that are time barred under the applicable statute of limitations.
- 60. Defendants and its employees or agents are excluded from the Class. Plaintiff does not know the number of members in the class, but believes that the Class members' number exceeds 50, if not more. Thus, this matter should be certified as a Class action for the purposes of judicial economy and efficiency and to assist in the expeditions litigation of this matter.
- 61. The estimated size of this class is so numerous that joinder of all members would be impracticable and potentially cost prohibitive.
- 62. The question of law in this case and the factual allegations asserted herein would be common to all class members.
- 63. The claims and defenses of both defenses are typical to the matters contained in this cause of action.
- 64. Undersigned counsel, as well as the Plaintiff, will fairly and adequately protect the interests of this class.
- 65. Plaintiff and members of the class were harmed by the acts of Defendants in at least the following ways: Defendants, either directly or through their agents, collected or attempted to collect debts that were barred by the statute of limitations which any payment of same would toll the applicable statute of limitations rendering the debts collectable again, in direct violation of the FDCPA and the FCCPA, as more explicitly enumerated in the counts below. Plaintiff and the class members were damaged thereby.
- 66. This suit seeks compensatory damages, injunctive relief, as well as statutory damages on behalf of the Class. Plaintiff reserves the right to expand the Class definition to seek recovery on behalf of additional persons as warranted as facts are learned in further investigation and discovery.

- 67. The joinder of Class members is impractical due to the large number of class members, and the disposition of their claims in the Class action will provide substantial benefits both to the parties and to the Court. The Class can be identified through Defendants' records or Defendants' agents' records.
- 68. There is a well-defined community of interest in the questions of law and fact involved affecting the parties to be represented. The questions of law and fact to the Class predominate over questions which may affect individual Class members, including the following:
 - a. Whether, within one year prior to the filing of this Complaint, Defendants or their agents wrote correspondence to a Class member seeking to collect debts that were time barred by the applicable statute of limitations (except those that had been tolled pursuant to Florida law);
 - b. Whether, within one year prior to the filing of this Complaint, Defendants or their agents, failed to indicate in the written correspondence to a Class member that said debt was not collectable through legal action as a result of the time that had elapsed since the alleged default;
 - c. Whether, within one year prior to the filing of this Complaint, Defendants, or their agents, filed suit based at least in part on the time-barred debts referenced in the correspondence sent seeking to collect debts; AND
 - d. Whether Plaintiff and the Class members were damaged thereby, and the extent of damages for such violations in addition to statutory damages.
- 69. As persons who received at least one written correspondence from Defendants seeking to collect debts had an expired statute of limitations that barred collection through legal means, Plaintiff is asserting claims that are typical of this class. During the one-year period prior to the filing of this Complaint, Defendants were engaged in a pattern and practice of contacting members of the class in connection with a debt that was time barred for collection through legal action. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of the Class in that Plaintiff has no interests antagonistic to any member of the Class.
- 70. Plaintiff and members of the Class have all suffered irreparable harm as a result of the Defendants unlawful and wrongful conduct. Absent a class action, the Class will continue to face the potential for irreparable harm. In addition, these violations of law will be allowed to

proceed without remedy and Defendants will likely continue such illegal conduct. Because of the relatively small size of the individual claims, few, if any Class members could afford to seek individual legal redress for the wrongs complained of herein.

- 71. Plaintiff has retained counsel experienced in handling claims involving violations of the Fair Debt Collection Practices act and the Florida Consumer Collection Practices Act.
- 72. A class action is a superior method for the fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy. Class-wide damages are essential to induce Defendants to comply with Federal and Florida law. The interest of Class members in individually controlling the prosecution of separate claims against Defendants are small because the maximum statutory damages in an individual action pursuant to FDCPA and the FCCPA, as more explicitly enumerated in the counts below, is minimal. Management of these claims is likely to present significantly fewer difficulties than those present in many class claims.
- 73. As Plaintiff, and on behalf of the class, has requested injunctive relief to bar Defendants from attempts to collect time-barred debts in the manner contained by these allegations, and subject to further discovery Defendants have continued or will continue to collect debts in the manner referenced in this Amended Complaint until court intervention, this relief is appropriate to the class as a whole.

COUNT I – VIOLATION OF THE FLORIDA CONSUMER COLLECTION PRACTICES AGAINST ROSEWOOD

- 74. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 52 of this Complaint as though fully set forth herein.
- 75. Defendant, ROSEWOOD violated FCCPA § 559.72(9) by claiming, attempting, or threatening to enforce a debt when Defendant knew that the debt was not legitimate as a portion of same was time barred by the applicable statute of limitations Fla. Stat. 95.11(2)(b).
- 76. Defendant, ROSEWOOD violated FCCPA § 559.72(9) by asserting the existence of a legal right to collect the debt, or a portion thereof, when Defendant knew the right to collect said debt did not exist.
- 77. Defendant, ROSEWOOD violated FCCPA § 559.72(9) by asserting the existence of a legal right to collect the debt, namely threatening to foreclose against the subject property on August 25, 2017 within 30 days when the claim of lien was not recorded until

August 24, 2017, when Defendant knew the right to collect said debt did not exist under the declaration and Fla. Stat. 720.3085(5).

- 78. Defendant, ROSEWOOD violated FCCPA § 559.72(9) by including language in its initial communication, through counsel, that sought a settlement of the amounts in question without providing written notice that any payment on the amounts alleged would toll the statute of limitations and revitalize a time barred debt.
- 79. As a direct and proximate cause of Defendant, ROSEWOOD's, debt collection activities, Plaintiff has suffered damages both actual and statutory. In addition to statutory damages, Plaintiff has suffered actual damages as the amount alleged by Defendant, ROSEWOOD, far exceeds the amount actually due and owing. Due to the collection practice, Plaintiff has had to defend a state law action that seeks amounts that are not accurate and has incurred costs including mailing, time off of work, etc.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, HILLARY FENNER, requests that this Court award the following relief in favor of Plaintiff against the Defendant, ROSEWOOD:

- Actual damages as prescribed by statute;
- The maximum amount of statutory and/or additional damages provided under Fla.
 Stat. § 559.77(2).
 - c. Reasonable attorney's fees and the costs of this action; and
 - d. Such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and proper.

COUNT II – VIOLATION OF THE FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT AGAINST CM LAW

- 80. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 73 of this Complaint as though fully set forth herein.
- 81. Defendant, CM LAW, violated FDCPA 15 U.S.C § 1692(e)(2)(a) by falsely representing the character, amount, or legal status of the Deht, in its letters attached to this Complaint, to Plaintiff as same were time-barred under Florida law.
- 82. Defendant, CM LAW, violated FDCPA 15 U.S.C § 1692(e)(2)(a) by falsely representing the character, amount, or legal status of the Debt by indicating that it was entitled to foreclose within thirty days of its August 25, 2017 letter, despite bringing litigation purportedly under Fla. Stat. 720.3085(5) which required a 45 day period.

- 83. Defendant, CM LAW, violated FDCPA 15 U.S.C § 1692(e)(5) by stating in its August 25, 2017 letter that it would seek foreclosure in 30 days despite not having complied with Fla. Stat. 720.3085 in its entirety.
- 84. Defendant, CM LAW, violated FDCPA 15 U.S.C. § 1692(e)(11) by failing to include in its initial correspondence, sent on April 27, 2017 that the communication was from a debt collector that the debt collector is attempting to collect a debt and that any information obtained will be used for that purpose.
- 85. Defendant, CM LAW, violated FDCPA 15 U.S.C. § 1692(f)(1) by attempting to collect an 18% interest rate on delinquent debts when only 10% was allowable by the governing documents of the association.
- 86. Defendant, CM LAW, violated FDCPA 15 U.S.C. § 1692(f) by attempting to induce the Plaintiff into settlement on time barred debts without disclosing that the payment of any sum could potentially revitalize or otherwise toll said debt.
- 87. Defendant, CM LAW, violated FDCPA 15 U.S.C. § 1692(g)(b) by overshadowing the 30 day timeline to dispute a debt under 15 USCA § 1692(g)(a) with the 45 day notice of intent to impose a claim of lien.
- 88. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant's, CM LAW, failure to comply with the FDCPA as set forth above, the Defendant is liable to Plaintiffs for payment of damages as set forth in 15 U.S.C. 1692k.
- 89. In addition to statutory damages, Plaintiff has suffered actual damages as the amount alleged by Defendant, BLG, far exceeds the amount actually due and owing. Due to the collection practice, Plaintiff has lost the ability to lease the unit for fears of impending judgment of time barred amounts, in addition to having to use her cellular plan or landline to make phone calls to BLG's agents and/or employees.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, HILLARY FENNER, requests that this Court award the following relief in favor of Plaintiff against the Defendant, CM LAW:

- a. Actual damages sustained by Plaintiff;
- b. The maximum amount of statutory additional damages provided under 15 U.S.C 1692k;
- c. Reasonable attorney's fees and the costs of this action; and
- d. Such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and proper.

COUNT III – VIOLATION OF THE FLORIDA CONSUMER COLLECTION PRACTICES AGAINST CM LAW

- 90. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 73 of this Complaint as though fully set forth herein.
- 91. Defendant, CM LAW violated FCCPA § 559.72(9) by claiming, attempting, or threatening to enforce a debt when Defendant knew that the debt was not legitimate as a portion of same was time barred by the applicable statute of limitations Fla. Stat. 95.11(2)(b).
- 92. Defendant, CM LAW violated FCCPA § 559.72(9) by asserting the existence of a legal right to collect the debt, or a portion thereof, when Defendant knew the right to collect said debt did not exist.
- 93. Defendant, CM LAW violated FCCPA § 559.72(9) by asserting the existence of a legal right to collect the debt, namely threatening to foreclose against the subject property on August 25, 2017 within 30 days when the claim of lien was not recorded until August 24, 2017, when Defendant knew the right to collect said debt did not exist under the declaration and Fla. Stat. 720.3085(5).
- 94. Defendant, CM LAW violated FCCPA § 559.72(9) by including language in its initial communication to the Plaintiff, that sought a settlement of the amounts in question without providing written notice that any payment on the amounts alleged would toll the statute of limitations and revitalize a time barred debt.
- 95. As a direct and proximate cause of Defendant, CM LAW's, debt collection activities, Plaintiff has suffered damages both actual and statutory. In addition to statutory damages, Plaintiff has suffered actual damages as the amount alleged by Defendant, BLG, far exceeds the amount actually due and owing. Due to the collection practice, Plaintiff has had to defend a state law action that seeks amounts that are not accurate and has incurred costs including mailing, time off of work, etc.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, HILLARY FENNER, requests that this Court award the following relief in favor of Plaintiff against the Defendant, CM LAW:

- a. Actual damages as prescribed by statute;
- The maximum amount of statutory and/or additional damages provided under Fla.
 Stat. § 559.77(2);
- c. Injunctive relief which permanently bars Defendant, CM LAW, from future violations under Fla. Stat. § 559.72(2);

- d. Reasonable attorney's fees and the costs of this action; and
- e. Such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and proper.

REQUEST FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff respectfully request a jury trial on all issues so triable.

VERIFICATION

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have read the foregoing document and that the facts stated in it are true.

HILLARY FENNER

Respectfully submitted,

Bryant H. Dunivan Jr., Esq.

Fla. Bar No: 102594

OWEN & DUNIVAN, PLLC

615 W. De Leon St. Tampa, FL 33606 Phone: 813.502.6768 Attorney for Plaintiff

CLAIM OF LIEN

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that ROSEWOOD COLONY OWNERS
ASSOCIATION, INC. hereinafter referred to as "Association," (the Registered Agent of DOC # 20170469548 which is Signature Management Solutions, 498 Palm Springs Drive STE 210, Altomorte 08/24/2017 07:15 AM Page 1 of 1 Springs, FL 32701), pursuant to the provisions of the DECLARATION OF Rec Fee: \$10.00
CONDOMINIUM OF ROSEWOOD COLONY, A CONDOMINIUM, recorded in Official Records Book 3108, at Page 1645, at seq., of the Public Records of ORANGE
County Florida as a mended and supplemented claims a lien for uppeid accordance. County, Florida, as amended and supplemented, claims a lien for unpaid assessments. Phil Diamond, Comptroller interest, and collection charges, together with costs and attorneys' fees incurred by the Orenge County, FL Association incident to the collection of such assessments or enforcement of such lien; Ret To: SIMPLIFILE LC upon real property more particularly described as follows:

Lot D, Block 6, ROSEWOOD COLONY PHASE I, eccording to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 10, at Page 50, of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida

The name and address of the owner of record is;

Hillary H. Feater d048 Shanton Brown Drive Orlando, FL 32208

This Claim of Lien is to secure the assessment(s) and other expenses levied by the Association in the manual and for the dalas indicated and for such other sums as may become due thereafter;

Assessment in the amount of \$8,452.00 for the time period of April 2012 through July 2017.

Together with late and/or administrative fees, interest at eighteen percent (1836) per annual from the time each and every easessured has and shall come due, attenney's fees, and costs incidental to the antercoment of title Bun.

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL this 14 day of ANALY , 2017

Lienor, ROSEWOOD COLONY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

(sign)

STATE OF TORICE COUNTY OF SEMIODE

Manilliantion.

THIS INSTRUMENT PROPARED BY: Netl McCallah, Esquire Clayton & McCallah Attemeys At Law 1065 Maltland Center Commons Blvd. Maliland, Florida 32751 rkb-22699-1

(print) A no Cheistophia

My Commission Expires; (NOTARY SEÁL)

MARC CHRISTOPHER CITENGA MY COMMISSION #FF111232 EXPIRES April 8, 2018 Florid:24012ry Service.es

JS 44 (Rev. 06/17)

CIVIL COVER SHEET

The IS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. ISSE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

purpose of interacting the civil	docker slieet. (SEE INSTRU	CHONS ON NEXT PAGE ()F THIS FO	PRM.)					
I. (a) PLAINTIFFS HILLARY FENNER				RESERVED CON OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., CLAYTON & MCCULLOH, P.A.					
(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff ORANGE (EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES) (c) Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number)				County of Residence of First Listed Defendant (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY) NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.					
				Attorneys (If Known)				
BRYANT H. DUNIVAN									
II. BASIS OF JURISD	ICTION (Place an "X" in	One Box Only)	III. CI	TIZENSHIP OF I	PRINCIPA	AL PARTIES	(Place an "X" in	One Box j	for Plaintif
☐ 1 U.S. Government Plaintiff			(For Diversity Cases Only) I	PTF DEF	Incorporated or Pr	and One Box for incipal Place	or Defenda PTF	ant) DEF ØX 4
☐ 2 U.S. Government Defendant	☐ 4 Diversity (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III)		Citize	n of Another State	2 2 2	Incorporated and I of Business In A		□ 5	□ 5
				n or Subject of a C	3 0 3	Foreign Nation		□ 6	O 6
IV. NATURE OF SUIT		nly) ORTS			Click	here for: Nature of	of Suit Code De	scription	s.
☐ 110 Insurance ☐ 120 Marine ☐ 130 Miller Act ☐ 140 Negotiable Instrument ☐ 150 Recovery of Overpayment & Enforcement of Judgment ☐ 151 Medicare Act ☐ 152 Recovery of Defaulted Student Loans	PERSONAL INJURY 310 Airplane 315 Airplane Product Liability 320 Assault, Libel &	PERSONAL INJURY 365 Personal Injury - Product Liability 367 Health Care/ Pharmaceutical Personal Injury Product Liability 368 Asbestos Personal Injury Product Liability PERSONAL PROPERT 370 Other Fraud 371 Truth in Lending 380 Other Personal Property Damage Product Liability	Y 🗆 625	5 Drug Related Scizure of Property 21 USC 881 Other	### 21 USC 881		☐ 375 False Claims Act ☐ 376 Qui Tam (31 USC 3729(a)) ☐ 400 State Reapportionment ☐ 410 Antirust ☐ 430 Banks and Banking ☐ 450 Commerce ☐ 460 Deportation ☐ 470 Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations ☐ 490 Cable/Sat TV ☐ 850 Securities/Commodities/		
(Excludes Veterans) 153 Recovery of Overpayment of Veteran's Benefits 160 Stockholders' Suits 190 Other Contract 195 Contract Product Liability 196 Franchise			☐ 710 ☐ 720 ☐ 740	Fair Labor Standards Act Labor/Management Relations Railway Labor Act Family and Medical Leave Act					
REAL PROPERTY 210 Land Condemnation 220 Forcelosure 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 240 Torts to Land 245 Tort Product Liability 290 All Other Real Property	☐ 440 Other Civil Rights ☐ 441 Voting ☐ 442 Employment ☐ 443 Housing/ Accommodations ☐ 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - Employment ☐ 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - Other ☐ 448 Education	PRISONER PETITION Habeas Corpus: □ 463 Alien Detainee □ 510 Motions to Vacate Sentence □ 530 General □ 535 Death Penalty Other: □ 540 Mandamus & Other □ 550 Civil Rights □ 550 Prison Condition □ 560 Civil Detainee - Conditions of Confinement	☐ 791 ☐ 462	Other Labor Litigation Employee Retirement Income Security Act IMMIGRATION Naturalization Application Other Immigration Actions	□ 870 Taxes or De □ 871 IRS— 26 U	LETAX SUITS (U.S. Plaintiff fendant) -Third Party SC 7609	Act 896 Arbitratio 899 Administ Act/Revio Agency I 950 Constitut		
	noved from	Remanded from Appellate Court	4 Reinst Reope	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	er District	6 Multidistri Litigation Transfer	- i	Multidist Litigation Direct File	1 -
VI. CAUSE OF ACTIO	N 15 USC 1692(e). Brief description of ca	tute under which you are 15 USC 1692(f), 15 use:	USC 16	not cite jurisdictional sta	tutes unless div				
Consumer Claims and Potential Class VII. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT: CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P.				EMAND S CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint: JURY DEMAND: X Yes DNo					
VIII. RELATED CASE IF ANY	(See instructions):	JUDGE THOUSE SAN	E 10	210du		£	LAUSE CU	1	*out
PATE 176/18		SIGNATURE OF ALTO	ORNE OF	RECORD		***************************************		12103	-
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY RECEIPT # AM	IOUNT	APPLY MG IFP	_	IUDGE		MAG ILID	20		

JS 44 Reverse (Rev. 06/17)

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44

Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of Court for each civil complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

- I.(a) Plaintiffs-Defendants. Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use only the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and then the official, giving both name and title.
- (b) County of Residence. For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant" is the location of the tract of land involved.)
- (c) Attorneys. Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting in this section "(see attachment)".
- II. Jurisdiction. The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an "X" in one of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below. United States plaintiff. (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here. United States defendant. (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box. Federal question. (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.

 Diversity of citizenship. (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity cases.)
- III. Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties. This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. Mark this section for each principal party.
- IV. Nature of Suit. Place an "X" in the appropriate box. If there are multiple nature of suit codes associated with the case, pick the nature of suit code that is most applicable. Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.
- V. Origin. Place an "X" in one of the seven boxes.
 - Original Proceedings. (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.

Removed from State Court. (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441. When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.

Remanded from Appellate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing date.

Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.

Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or multidistrict litigation transfers.

Multidistrict Litigation – Transfer. (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1407.

Multidistrict Litigation – Direct File. (8) Check this box when a multidistrict case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket.

PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS NOT AN ORIGIN CODE 7. Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to changes in statue.

- VI. Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service
- VII. Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.

 Demand. In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.

 Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.
- VIII. Related Cases. This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.

ClassAction.org

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this post: Rosewood Colony Owners Association and Law Firm Named in FL Debt Collection Suit